

**The original documents are located in Box 50, folder “1975/08/29 - Bill Seidman” of the James M. Cannon Files at the Gerald R. Ford Presidential Library.**

### **Copyright Notice**

The copyright law of the United States (Title 17, United States Code) governs the making of photocopies or other reproductions of copyrighted material. Gerald Ford donated to the United States of America his copyrights in all of his unpublished writings in National Archives collections. Works prepared by U.S. Government employees as part of their official duties are in the public domain. The copyrights to materials written by other individuals or organizations are presumed to remain with them. If you think any of the information displayed in the PDF is subject to a valid copyright claim, please contact the Gerald R. Ford Presidential Library.

SEIDMAN MEETING ON EMISSIONS  
STANDARDS

Friday, August 29, 1975

2:00 p.m.

Mr. Seidman's Office

June 27, 1975

Office of the White House Press Secretary

---

THE WHITE HOUSE

STATEMENT BY THE PRESIDENT

Earlier this year, I submitted to the Congress my proposed Energy Independence Act of 1975. In that comprehensive proposal, I recommended that the Congress modify provisions of the Clean Air Act of 1970 related to automobile emissions. I proposed strict emission controls that would still permit America to achieve a high-priority energy goal -- a 40 percent improvement in automobile fuel efficiency within four years.

Since that time, I have received information concerning potential health hazards from certain automobile pollution control devices first used on 1975 cars. In response to this information, I ordered an executive branch review of the problem and asked the appropriate officials to consider the various impacts of a range of emission alternatives as they relate to public health, energy goals, consumer prices and environmental objectives.

This review has now been completed. We have carefully surveyed this matter with many scientists and other qualified authorities. Although there is some disagreement on the data and conclusions, there is general accord that it is impossible to accurately predict the adverse impacts likely to result if we move to stricter automobile pollution standards now. Most of the experts agree that tighter emission controls will limit the fuel economy potential of our cars, and all agree that they will increase costs to the consumer.

As the automobile manufacturers have responded to Federal requirements to remove pollutants from automobile exhaust, other unregulated pollutants with potentially serious health implications have been produced. The same devices designed to control some emissions may result in the creation or aggravation of other pollutants. The result of government-mandated changes to our automobiles could actually increase prices, without substantial environmental benefits but with possible new risk to the Nation's health.

As a result of actions already taken, the automobile is rapidly becoming less of a contributor to air pollution. A major part of our task is behind us. But it was the easiest part. We have now reached the point where the further incremental progress we all want can only be achieved slowly and at higher cost.

I, therefore, urge the Congress to consider how uncoordinated Federal laws mandating automobile fuel efficiency and emission control might work against each other, and how they will effect other national objectives such as public health and a strong economy.

more

In view of these considerations, I have decided to revise my Administration's position proposed in the Energy Independence Act. We simply cannot afford to be wrong on such serious policies. I have concluded that we should maintain the current automobile emission standards through model year 1981. This will enable us to achieve the following objectives:

- Health. Avoid increasing the potential adverse health impacts of certain automobile emission devices by retaining current controls on known health hazards, such as carbon monoxide and hydrocarbons, without the risk of increasing other imperfectly understood but potentially dangerous pollutants such as sulfuric acid.
- Energy. Achieve an increase of 40 percent or greater in automobile fuel efficiency by 1980.
- Environment. Achieve almost all the environmental objectives we would have achieved by going to stricter standards.
- Economy. Minimize the inflationary impact of Federal regulations on the cost of automobiles to consumers. Avoid aggravating unemployment, especially in the automobile industry.

I recognize that this position modifies the auto emission standards contained in my proposed Energy Independence Act of 1975 which I transmitted to the Congress on January 30. However, as pointed out in recent testimony during Congressional hearings, the Administrator of the Environmental Protection Agency has already noted that it is necessary to adjust the strict emission standards that I proposed. Administrator Train held hearings which considered the problem of sulfuric acid mist emitted from cars equipped with catalytic converters. Most new cars are equipped with the converter to meet current emission standards. The Administrator concluded that this is a potentially serious health hazard. The Secretary of Health, Education, and Welfare agrees.

Evidence brought out at the EPA hearings and by other Government reports, shows that current catalytic converters do not emit enough sulfuric acid to constitute any immediate danger. However, if the auto emission standards are further lowered, as would be required if no change is made in the current law, then changes in the catalytic converter control system would be mandatory. This could produce substantially more sulfuric acid. This poses a health risk which my advisers believe we should not accept.

The Nation needs long-term automobile fuel efficiency and emission control policies so that we can begin to build cars meeting responsible energy and environmental standards. By replacing the current fleet with new cars offering more fuel efficiency while generating less pollution, we will make substantial progress toward our goals of better fuel efficiency, economic recovery and a healthier environment.

more

I deplore the delay in resolving the conflict between Federal energy and environmental policies and laws. Such delays will only contribute to further economic disruption and continuing unacceptable levels of unemployment. Lack of a comprehensive and balanced policy would allow one objective to go forward at the expense of other critical national goals.

It may be that additional Government standards will be required in future years. This is something which EPA and other Government agencies will work on in cooperation with the appropriate committees of Congress.

Today we cannot shirk our responsibility to make decisions that establish realistic ground rules. We cannot afford to ignore the sulfuric acid problem. But our response must be more than simply another Government decree that sets another standard that could create another problem. We have a positive obligation to ensure that the steps we take today do not aggravate potentially serious health hazards.

Other technical information was brought to my attention as I reached my automobile emissions decision. In addition to a statement of facts, which I am making public today, I have asked my advisers to consult with the appropriate members of the Congress, particularly the committees now considering legislation in this field. They will be available to discuss these complex and interrelated issues and to provide all the detailed information available to the executive branch.

I urge the Congress to carefully consider all the issues involved in the potential conflict that one national objective -- clean air -- might have on our efforts to reach other national goals.

# # # #

June 27, 1975

Office of the White House Press Secretary

THE WHITE HOUSE

FACT SHEET

Amendments to the Clean Air Act  
(affecting automobile emission standards)

The President recommended today that Congress pass legislation designed to amend the Clean Air Act by extending the current automobile emission standards from 1977 until 1981.

While this action will have no significant impact on our efforts to achieve the objectives of the Clean Air Act, the proposed modifications are necessary to (1) avoid certain recently recognized potential health risks associated with the catalytic converter and (2) permit substantially greater fuel efficiencies over the next five years.

All of the enforcement, certification and inspection measures contained in the Clean Air Act will be retained.

This proposal supercedes Section 503, Title V, of the President's Energy Independence Act of 1975 which he sent to Congress on January 30, 1975. At that time, the President proposed emission standards based on a modification of the current California standards.

BACKGROUND

After submitting the Energy Independence Act to the Congress, the Environmental Protection Agency held public hearings on the manufacturers' requests for a suspension of the 1977 auto emission standards and also took testimony related to five-year emission levels. The hearings established that the catalytic converter, used to meet the HC and CO standards for 1975 and 1976 model year vehicles, produces sulfuric acid in amounts that can pose a significant public health risk.

In addition, because of the technology likely to be used to achieve these tighter standards, automobile emissions of sulfuric acid may double if the more stringent HC and CO standards previously proposed in the Energy Independence Act are imposed for 1977 and subsequent years.

Accordingly, the President directed an interagency task force to undertake a major review of the public health, energy and consumer cost implications of several widely discussed levels of automobile emission standards. The President's decision announced today is based upon this review.

more

The President will propose legislation to maintain the current automobile emission standards through model year 1980. This will accomplish the following objectives:

- . Health. Avoid increasing the potential adverse health impacts of certain automobile emission devices by retaining current controls on known health hazards, such as carbon monoxide and hydrocarbons, without the risk of increasing other imperfectly understood but potentially dangerous pollutants such as sulfuric acid.
- . Energy. Achieve an increase of 40 percent or greater in automobile fuel efficiency by 1980.
- . Environment. Achieve almost all the environmental objectives we would have achieved by going to stricter standards.
- . Economy. Minimize the inflationary impact of Federal regulations on the cost of automobiles to consumers. Avoid aggravating unemployment, especially in the automobile industry.

# # # # #

OFFICE OF THE WHITE HOUSE PRESS SECRETARY

---

THE WHITE HOUSE  
PRESS CONFERENCE  
OF  
FRANK ZARB  
ADMINISTRATOR OF THE  
FEDERAL ENERGY ADMINISTRATION  
JOHN BARNUM  
DEPUTY SECRETARY OF THE  
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION  
JOHN QUARLES  
DEPUTY ADMINISTRATOR OF THE  
ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY  
AND  
THEODORE COOPER  
ASSISTANT SECRETARY FOR HEALTH  
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, EDUCATION AND WELFARE

*Auto  
Guinness*

THE BRIEFING ROOM

3:02 P.M. EDT

MR. GREENER: The President today is making recommendations to Congress to amend the Clean Air Act by extending the current automobile emission standards for five years, from 1977 until 1981.

You should have a copy already of the President's statement, a fact sheet and an Energy Resources Council memorandum.

Here today to highlight the President's recommendations and to answer your questions are Frank Zarb, the Administrator of the Federal Energy Administration; John Barnum, the Deputy Secretary of the Department of Transportation; John Quarles, the Deputy Administrator of the Environmental Protection Agency, and Dr. Ted Cooper, Assistant Secretary for Health at HEW.

Frank?

MR. ZARB: Thank you, Bill.

The President today has announced his decision to recommend that the Clean Air Act be amended to maintain the current automobile emission standards through model year 1981.

The President based his decision on an intensive review of complex sets of factors, as you could well imagine, including the impacts on public health, energy goals, consumer prices, environmental objectives and safety.

MORE

While there is an agreement among experts concerning some of the near-term implications of tighter automobile emission controls, there are many unknowns. Thus, the President has decided that we should proceed with caution.

The President's decision, if implemented, with the cooperation of the Congress, will still enable us to achieve almost all of our environmental objectives. At the same time, his decision will not expose the Nation to the danger of unknown risks and costs and will permit us to reach other national objectives, such as greater fuel efficiency.

The fact sheet that you have gotten -- I suspect you have had it for a couple of hours now -- is pretty complicated. We have some experts who will remain here with you after the panel has left for any indepth, technical discussion, but I am sure you may have some questions for those of us who are represented.

Q Mr. Zarb, is this Administration recommending this simply on the basis of the sulfates?

MR. ZARB: I guess the answer to the question is yes and no. The President sent a different set of changes to the Clean Air Act as related to auto emissions in January. You may recall that.

Q Very well.

MR. ZARB: Since that time there has been a great deal of discussion, hearings and EPA recommendations that were brought about because of the sulfate issue. Looking at that set of circumstances, plus working with HEW on health issues and transportation on safety and cost issues, and FEA and others on the energy efficiency question, the President reviewed the whole question and came down on a different decision, which is the one that is before us today.

Q Mr. Zarb, 99 percent of the sulfates in urban areas is the result on the stationary sources, and if this is so difficult, from the point of view of emissions from automobiles to only 1 percent, why is it that you steadily oppose any kind of scrubbers on power plants, which are responsible for 60 percent of the 99 percent of the sulfates coming into the urban area. You have steadily taken that position.

MORE

The answer to your question is that I have not steadily opposed it, as you say. Russ Train and I came to agreement on the question of scrubbers that was, I guess, midway between where he started and where I started.

We both testified before the Congress, and I think that the new scrubber schedule that we proposed will help us with our particular short-range energy questions and will ultimately get us to the ambient air quality that he wanted around stationary sources, so we have not continually resisted the establishment of scrubbers and scrubber technology. I still think it is the long-term answer to burning coal.

MORE

Q Mr. Zarb, you have said that this will still enable us to reach all of our environmental goals. Would you add to that, that it would enable us to reach it at a later date, however? (Laughter)

MR. ZARB: If you would like me to add that, I will. I would point out -- I will ask John Quarles to add to my answer with a great deal more proficiency -- I would ask you to look at the Attachment 1 in the comprehensive fact sheet which gives a comparison of the achievement of specific environmental goals -- ambient air goals -- with this program, with the EPA recommendation, with the last January recommendation, and with the current statutory requirement so that you can judge for yourself area-by-area and almost city-by-city the variations which would occur by virtue of this proposal.

Q Generalized reply to that question, and that is that you have said it still enables us to reach all our environmental goals. My question is, with any change of timetable?

MR. ZARB: With very little change in timetable. I will read again my opening statement which I think I read word-for-word -- will enable us to achieve almost all of our environmental objectives -- and I think many of those, or a good many of those will still be achieved within the previously stated time frame.

Some might take somewhat longer because of this change, but if you will look at the chart city-by-city you will see that many of them will be achieved even with this particular change.

Q You listed a number of things, as I recall, that are involved in the health environment, energy considerations, and so on. Does this not, however, represent some kind of a reorientation of priorities with energy and some of the others taking precedence now over the environment?

MR. ZARB: I don't think that is a fair conclusion, no. When, in January, we put forward the President's program, within it was a provision that requested a change in the Clean Air Act which would bring us to the California standards. Since that moment in time, there has been a great deal of discussion with respect to the sulfur oxide issue, and we had to rethink the entire question based upon the study and the discussion that surrounded that issue.

I don't think this places environmental issues in a different order of priority. I think what it does suggest is that we must continue to look at each of these objectives in the light of others, and create the best possible balance of all to insure that we achieve all of our national goals simultaneously, because they are all required.

MORE

Q Mr. Zarb, is there anything in what you are proposing that the automobile industry is very unhappy with?

MR. BARNUM: I think that what we are proposing here is compatible with what we requested them to consider at the time the President asked for a 40 percent fuel efficiency improvement by the model year 1980.

At that time, the President was talking about 9.9 and 3.1. This is consistent with that. The one unknown to the automobile industry -- and it remains an unknown -- is the requirement that will be imposed at some time in the future for a sulfuric acid emission, and until that is ascertained it is not possible to predict exactly what fuel efficiency improvements will be available with these other standards for carbon monoxide, hydrocarbons and NOx.

Q In discussing these proposals, with them have you found them at all dissatisfied with what you want to do?

MR. BARNUM: I have not discussed these proposals with them and I don't believe anybody else in the Department of Transportation has.

Q Mr. Barnum, are you basically saying that you got a 40 percent fuel improvement commitment by 1980 based on more stringent standards? Now you are giving easier standards but you are not going to ask them for further fuel economy commitments?

MR. BARNUM: No, we have not said that.

Q Do you plan to?

MR. BARNUM: Well, look at the table on the very last page of the fact sheet and it will show you that if indeed these are the only requirements ---

Q We don't have that.

MR. BARNUM: I beg your pardon -- on the Energy Resources Council memorandum.

What that table shows is that with the 1.5 and 15 instead of the 9 and .9, they would be able to attain a 46 percent fuel efficiency improvement by the model year 1980.

MORE

What is unknown is what effect on that ability to attain a 46 percent fuel efficiency improvement will be the consequence of the sulfuric acid requirement that is laid on by EPA regulation when they are prepared to determine what the level should be, and it may very well be that that will force the fuel efficiency improvement back down to 40 percent. If it does not, if a 46 percent fuel efficiency improvement is available with the sulfuric acid standards that is determined to be desirable, yes, of course, we would ask them to meet what we in our judgment conclude they could do, which in this instance is 46 percent.

Q You would ask them in 1979?

MR. BARNUM: No, we would be prepared to do that when we know what the sulfuric acid standard is.

Q Which is the 1979 models?

MR. BARNUM: No, I think they are talking about having a sulfuric acid standard sooner than that. As to when it would be applicable, it has not yet been determined.

Q Mr. Quarles, hasn't the converter resulted in a fuel economy?

MR. QUARLES: Yes.

Q General Motors, in its ad this week, says a 28 percent in city driving. Now, if you arrive at a point where you are going to possibly do away with the converter because they can meet the interim standards on some of the cars without a converter, now what is going to happen to Mr. Zarb's great program for 40 percent saving in fuel economy? Aren't you in a bind here?

MR. QUARLES: One of the questions is not only whether or not a converter is used but how hard you work the converter, and to the extent that you have more strict standards, even though a converter is used as a basic assumption, then the injection of more oxygen into the system to achieve all those standards is going to have an effect in reducing the emissions, but also will have an effect on fuel economy.

MORE

Q I talked to General Motors and Ford this morning, and they said they cannot possibly get this fuel economy without having the converter.

MR. QUARLES: I would assume that they would expect to continue to use converters.

Q But you are setting up a system where you can do away with the converters?

MR. QUARLES: No, I don't believe so.

MR. ZARB: I think the answer to your question is that to maintain current standards does not suggest that the converter or need to be done away with and, as a practical matter in our calculations it would not be.

Until a better fix is made on the sulfur oxide issue, I don't think we will have a definite answer to that question.

I would like to go back to the question that was raised here about the attitude of the automobile makers towards this particular provision and that relates somewhat to the 40 percent requirement. I don't think that 40 percent needs to be set in concrete. In working with the Congress, as we have, they have gone through a good many of the same paces -- in looking at the engineering and technology, talking with people inside and outside the industry, with management and with labor and have come to the conclusion that somewhere in that range is realistically achievable.

I think we all believe, including many of the folks in Detroit, that that can be beaten between now and 1980, depending upon some other things that occur. So, the answer to your question is that we will continually reassess that goal and if it can be improved, we will.

In answer to your question about the state of mind of the automobile makers with respect to this particular provision, I would just recall back during the days when we were focusing on the 40 percent issue there was a great deal of initial -- I was going to use the word "resistance" but a characteristic similar to that -- difference of view.

Often times we had a difference of view with respect to the Government asking for even that 40 percent given some of the uncertainties that faced them. So, I think the implication that this decision is completely consistent with what they want to have happen is not so.

MORE

Q Mr. Zarb, if you extend existing standards from 1977 to 1981, aren't you in effect saying you are not going to have any improvement in air quality over that period? I mean, you have already backed off the original set of standards. Aren't you in effect saying we are not going to make any progress until 1981?

MR. QUARLES: You phrased it differently the second time and came closer to the truth, but the question you first asked is whether there will be any improvement in air quality, and in that regard, there will be a continuing improvement in air quality in regard to hydrocarbon and carbon monoxide emissions because the cars now coming off the assembly lines meet standards vastly more stringent than the cars manufactured and sold several years or a decade ago, and as the older cars are replaced by newer cars, meaning more stringent standards, they will more than offset the expected increase in numbers of cars and use of cars and there is expected to be significant improvement in the general levels of air quality.

Q This is an improvement over standards which are already set?

MR. QUARLES: This is an improvement over air pollution problems that exist today.

Q Because of action taken by the Congress several years back?

MR. QUARLES: This is correct.

Q But not because of any action by the Ford Administration, indeed the Ford Administration would keep everything static until 1981.

MR. QUARLES: The progress that is being made now in moving ahead to reduce auto pollution results from the basic program established by the 1970 Clean Air Act.

Q The Muskie bill?

MR. QUARLES: The Muskie bill.

The proposals that have been made with respect to modifications of that statute to allow more time for achievement of the original statutory goals all inevitably have a consequence of postponing to some degree the date when there will be a full accomplishment of the clean air goal.

MORE

The issue that must be recognized in regard to any particular proposal is to consider how great an effect it would have. I think, as you are well aware, Russ Train went through a very extensive review of this entire problem back in January and February and in March and made proposals to the Congress for modifications of the deadline which would extend for a number of years the achievement of the ultimate and statutory objectives.

Q Let's go to the back-up from Russ Train.

MR. QUARLES: This proposal would involve a further modification in two respects. It is a delaying of the time when more stringent standards would be put into effect in two respects.

Russ Train's recommendations called for retaining the 1.5 HC standard and the 15 CO standard now in effect through 1977, 1978 1979 and that is the same proposal that the President has made.

Now, there are two respects in which the current proposal by the President changes that. One respect is that Russ Train's proposal would have reduced the HC and CO standards from 1.5 and 15 to .9 and 9 in the years of 1980 and 1981, whereas the current proposal would continue the 1.5 and 15 standard for those two additional years so that insofar as hydrocarbons and carbon monoxides are concerned, there would be that distinction in the out years.

The other distinction relates to NOx, where Train's proposal called for a 2.0 standard, and this proposal would call for a 3.1 standard.

Q The 1975 interim standard would be continued to the 1982 model year up through 1981?

MR. QUARLES: That is correct.

Q What about the sulfate standard that Mr. Train proposed for 1979 models?

MR. QUARLES: You mean what is the standard development?

Q Yes, where does it stand now?

MR. QUARLES: It is not as far along as we hoped it would be.

MORE

Q Are you still planning to promulgate?

MR. QUARLES: Yes, we are still working on it and we are anticipating that we will promulgate it and it will apply to 1979 model year cars.

Q Is this part of the President's proposal to a sulfate standard?

MR. QUARLES: That is assumed by the President's proposal. There is no expectation that it would be changed one way or the other.

Q Mr. Quarles, can you support these proposals if they are looser than the ones you and Mr. Train proposed a couple of months ago?

MR. QUARLES: Well, let me answer that yes and offer an explanation.

These are tough questions involving many uncertainties and many trade-offs, and EPA conducted intensive investigations of these issues during January and February and addressed the entire problem. At that time, in early March, Mr. Train developed conclusions and recommendations to Congress which he made and those reflected the best judgment that EPA was able to make on these basic issues, and we have subsequently offered testimony in Congress based essentially upon those recommendations.

Insofar as any formal position of the agency is concerned, on a legislative matter, this is, as you are well aware, a matter in which our position on any legislative item is developed through the process that involves a development of an Administration position through the White House and under the President, and this from the President's viewpoint involves a consideration of a range of factors that extend beyond our particular concerns for health and environmental protection as the primary emphasis -- two other factors including energy, safety, the economic factors and the like.

After considering the totality of those factors, the President has reached that position, and, of course, that is therefore a position which is binding upon us and which we would accept and support.

Q So would you continue to testify on the Hill for your earlier proposals, or for these?

MORE

MR. QUARLES: Well, I think that for one thing it is likely we may have no occasion to testify on the Hill on this because the testimony has been offered on these issues and the bills are now in mark-up, both on the House and Senate sides.

Q But no testimony, John, on this particular proposal?

MR. QUARLES: No, there has not, and if there would be hearings called on this particular proposal, then presumably we would testify. The testimony which we would give, or the position which we would have would not be to abandon or necessarily modify the analyses that we have made of the factors that go into these considerations and there are, you are well aware, all sorts of differing perceptions of virtually all of these issues that are involved because of their inherent complexity and I think that is recognized in the President's statement where he says that there are some differences on the data and the conclusion to be drawn from them.

We would defer to the President's judgment on the ultimate balancing and would support these numbers insofar as that ultimate position is concerned, while at the same time offering an attorney who might ask our own analysis of the facts so that Congress could balance these issues ultimately as its responsibility.

Q Could you comment on the National Academy of Science report three weeks ago when they said you could achieve the ultimate standards? Does the agency absolutely disagree with the National Academy of Sciences? Does the Administration disagree with that?

MR. QUARLES: I would take it that the Administration disagrees with that. The agency disagrees, certainly, with some parts of the analysis that underlies that.

I think one of the basic questions that is involved here in the analysis of the technological issues is uncertainties as to what can be achieved and what will be achieved, and from our viewpoint putting a primary emphasis on pushing ahead to achieve a higher degree of pollution control for the health objective.

Our inclination always is, and I think always should be, to push for the most ambitious achievement of improved technology that we feel realistically is possible.

MORE

I think from the viewpoint of others who have different primary objectives it is reasonable and it is natural and I think it has happened that others take a viewpoint that is more conservative as to what technology can be actually used in production on 10 million or 11 million cars by a different year, and so some of the differences as to technological achievement reflect that differing approach.

Q But, John, the industry absolutely disagrees with you.

MR. QUARLES: In what respect?

Q They are saying you are taking the right step in doing what they want to do for the wrong reason.

MR. QUARLES: Could you elaborate on that?

Q Yes. You are taking the step, you said, and Russ Train said and Mr. Zarb said, primarily because of the sulfate issue.

MR. ZARB: I didn't say that.

Q General Motors and Ford says you are doing this, which they agree with, because this is what they have asked for -- the interim standards for a five-year postponement -- but they say you are doing it for the wrong reason; that sulfates are not the reason.

MR. QUARLES: I think that it is important to clarify what Mr. Zarb said, that he did not say that this was done primarily because of the sulfates. As far as I am concerned, this is not something which could be put forward on the basis of the sulfate issue to a substantial extent.

MORE

Q But the statement says so here, John.

MR. QUARLES: The sulfate issue was very much before EPA at a time when we analyzed these issues and made the decisions and recommendations announced in March, and it was our judgment at that time that a significant postponement of the schedule for moving to the more stringent standards was required by the sulfate issue, as you may recall.

Let me take a moment and put in perspective the numbers that we are talking about. Right now we have on the books as statutory requirements standards that would apply to the 1978 model year of .41 grams per mile of hydrocarbons, 3.4 grams per mile of carbon monoxide and .4 grams a mile of NOx.

The recommendations which Mr. Train made in March were that Congress should amend the statute to change the HC standard for at least the first two years from .41 up to 1.5 -- that is almost quadrupling the amount -- to change the CO standard from 3.4 up to 15 and to change the NOx standard from .4 up to 2.0.

Those are very significant changes in the level of control of the basic auto pollutants and any enactment that would modify the standards to that extent is going to have a significant delaying effect on achievement of control of the basic auto pollutants in many of our urban centers where we have severe auto pollution problems.

We recognize that, and we don't like that, but Russ Train recommended that extension primarily because of the sulfate problem. He found as a consequence of the hearing that apart from the sulfate problem, it would be technologically feasible to achieve the statutory standards by the 1978 model year which, of course, was consistent with the Ruckelshaus finding of a year or two before, that it probably could have been done even sooner.

The proposal that is made now is a much narrower change of the standards and would have much more marginal effects on air quality.

I am saying, in other words, if you move from the statutory standards to what Russ Train proposed -- that is, a movement of certainty -- if you move to what the President is now proposing, that is a greater total distance, but a relatively small change from what Russ Train proposed to the proposal of today.

MORE

Q Mr. Zarb, as a matter of policy, I wonder why you would explain why the Administration has decided that it is not necessary to recommend more stringent automobile pollution standards between now and 1982 car models. That is six years. Why?

I mean, how can you defend the policy where you say it is not necessary to improve your pollution standards in the next six years from 1975?

MR. ZARB: Did everybody hear the question?

Q No.

MR. ZARB: The question was, how can I defend an Administration policy which would not improve further air quality standards -- not air quality, but the standards that relate to air quality -- for a five-year period, which would go through model 1981 cars.

There are two reasons I think that are major and the fact sheets have many, many others that you might want to refer to.

The change in standards, as we proposed in January, gave rise to a whole set of issues which were not answerable, and John just described one of the major ones, the sulfur oxide, the sulfur oxide mist problem.

The answers are not here today, so that we can make some judgments with respect to requirements in that particular area.

The proposals that were before us coming from EPA and some Members of Congress are not all that different from where we are with respect to ambient air improvement.

When you looked at the relative improvement from the margin beginning where, let's say, EPA was and where the President is today, looked at the energy efficiency problem in terms of fuel lost -- and that is summed up for you in the fact sheets -- looked at the economics involved and the total cost to the automobile buyer and then came full circle back to the question, do you know what you are doing at this point in setting some standards that have implications on other emissions and other questions, it became clear that the best form of national policy at this moment was to continue to accrue the improvement of air quality that came about, as you properly stated before, from the 1970 act and is now, in effect and during this interim period do some homework to learn some more about some of the issues which are not answerable at the present time, including the oxide question.

MORE

We have said that the oxide standard is assumed here, and it is, and, as you know, it has not turned out to be as easy as some had originally assumed to understand oxides and how to set appropriate standards.

MORE

Q Mr. Zarb, could you discuss briefly the energy considerations of this? How does this help you achieve your energy objective?

MR. ZARB: Irving, when you make these analyses you start with some assumptions so I would urge you to look into the fact sheet where we have carefully laid out some of the assumptions which we have reached and it becomes argumentative because others might use a different set of assumptions.

But as we looked at the improvements that might be required, using either statutory standards or EPA-established standards or recommended standards, knowing what we think we know about engine technology and engine technology change in the two-year time frame, and then in the five-year time frame, using Department of Transportation scientists to help with that issue, it became clear that moving to those standards would have a penalty in fuel, that the adjustments required to get there would have us use more fuel per gallon.

I am going to add quickly, before you add quickly, that there are some who suggest that there will be advanced technology changes in some engines and as a result what you are suggesting here really won't happen.

I can just play the ball from where it is at the moment -- that no one has produced those technology improvements, no one has shown them to us and if they are hidden in somebody's basement and they come out at some later date, then we ought to take a whole new look.

Q What will be the penalty in fuel if you cut off the converters on many of these cars and reach the interim standards which you are now proposing to continue for five years without the converter -- not all of them have to have this, but General Motors and Ford says there will be a tremendous fuel penalty if you do that.

Now, this is part of your program to save fuel.

MR. ZARB: If you are suggesting that the application of the converter is necessary to achieve further fuel savings, I would suggest that is not the whole story.

Q You are disputing General Motors and Ford?

MORE

MR. ZARB: Far be it from me to dispute them here today, but I have been known to do it in the past. It is my view that the application of that particular technology is not the only road to improved engine efficiency, and as you look at the mix and the fleet as it is now changing you can see where that mix change in itself based upon the higher piston engines will provide the improvements that we require without having that added hardware.

I guess the answer to your question is yes.

Q You can do away with the added hardware, then?

MR. BARNUM: Well, the converter itself does not change the efficiency of the engine.

Q I didn't say they did.

MR. BARNUM: But the implication of your questions has been that it does.

Q The implication of my question was, based upon their statements, and I am not making that implication -- is that the addition of the gizmo has added to the fuel economy. Now is that true or not true?

MR. BARNUM: That is not true.

MR. QUARLES: It is not true directly, but having the device on the car permits the avoidance of other pollution control devices which might have an adverse effect on fuel economy, so the net effect of it is that it does help fuel economy.

Q Is that part of the Administration's objective, fuel economy?

MR. ZARB: Yes. None of this proposes that we do away with the converter, and you are reaching that on an extension that I cannot get to yet, but we are not proposing that the converter be eliminated by virtue of what the President has announced today.

MR. GREENER: Two more questions, please.

Q Mr. Zarb, if Congress does not pass this proposal, would the Administration accept anything short of this?

MORE

MR. ZARB: The Administration, as you know, is always interested in looking at the Congress' point of view and if they come to another conclusion in the legislative process it will be looked at and weighed.

I cannot rule it out, Les, nor can I say that anything they come up with would be satisfactory.

Q You really expect them to pass this ---

MR. ZARB: I am hopeful by noting in a letter which I was served with a few moments ago, that Senator Muskie sent to some of his colleagues where he also suggests some modifications to the Act, he also ties those modifications to fuel economy using some of the same kind of language that I might use in a similar letter.

His numbers and his time frames are a little bit different, but I am encouraged that we for the first time are seeing that kind of discussion take place around the Hill.

Q Are you suggesting that you would accept something short of this?

Q On the 20 miles per gallon?

MR. ZARB: I really can't answer that question. It was shown to me on the way into the room and the only paragraph I saw was the one I probably would agree to, so until I read the rest of it ---

Q The ecology plane, for instance, in Denver, sometimes can't land because it is so blue because of the sulfur oxide, and I have done many stories on that. Does this apply to planes, too, or just automobiles?

MR. ZARB: There are emission standards for aircraft and this is not this subject, no.

Q Can we expect new stationary source standards or regulation as Mr. Train has asked for? Given that most or much of the sulfur dioxide comes from stationary sources, can we expect new stationary source regulations?

MR. ZARB: Let me go first and then John will add.

MR. QUARLES: Then I will correct you.

MORE

MR. ZARB: And then John will correct me.

We have up there a set of amendments that apply to the application of scrubber technology. The Administration stands by those amendments. We have had hearings, and as I say that is an area where EPA and FEA have come together to similarly endorse a similar set of amendments.

MR. QUARLES: I think that is a correct answer, and I would agree with that in regard to the power plants. I don't know that this is something that requires legislative action, other than legislative action that Mr. Zarb just referred to which might have an effect of providing some flexibility in establishing specific plant-by-plant requirements.

The need in this area is to push ahead with the plant-by-plant requirements; and secondly, in regard to the entire area, the auto pollutants, one of the things which we are learning is that not only in regard to hydrocarbons, sulfur oxides, but also in regard to the NOx that as control is improved in the autos, not to the degree that we would want but that as it is improved, there is a tremendous need to get more effective control over the stationary sources.

If we cannot solve that problem, we are not going to get clean air.

MR. GREENER: Thank you, gentlemen.

THE PRESS: Thank you.

END

(AT 3:44 P.M. EDT)

THE WHITE HOUSE  
WASHINGTON

July 24, 1975

ADMINISTRATIVELY CONFIDENTIAL

MEMORANDUM FOR: JIM CANNON  
FROM: JIM CONNOR *JC*  
SUBJECT: AUTO EMISSIONS AND OTHER CLEAN  
AIR ACT PROBLEMS

Confirming phone call to your office this evening, the President has reviewed your memorandum of July 24th and approved the following:

Alt. #2 Prepare the following for my signature:

Transmittal letter and bill to extend standards through 1981.

Letters to Committee Chairmen asking for hearings.

Please follow-up with appropriate action.

cc: Don Rumsfeld

THE WHITE HOUSE

WASHINGTON

DECISION

July 24, 1975

MEMORANDUM FOR

THE PRESIDENT

FROM:

JIM CANNON

SUBJECT:

AUTO EMISSIONS AND OTHER  
CLEAN AIR ACT PROBLEMS

The Rogers Subcommittee of House Commerce and Muskie Subcommittee of Senate Public Works are continuing work on Clean Air Act Amendments -- with the goal of reporting bills to their full committees before the recess. The outlook is bleak for all of the Administration's major amendments and the Subcommittees are considering how requirements would be troublesome.

The Current Issue

The issue for your consideration at this time is whether additional actions should be taken in an attempt to improve chances of getting acceptable auto emission standards. Specifically:

- . Do you wish to send up a bill now which would carry out your June 27 proposal to extend 1975-76 auto emission standards through model year 1981?
- . Do you wish to request formally that House and Senate Committees reopen Clean Air Act Hearings so that Zarb and others can testify?

Background

On June 27 you sent a message to Congress asking that present auto emission standards be continued for five years. Both the House and Senate Subcommittees completed hearings on auto emissions before your proposal was transmitted. The proposal has attracted very little favorable attention in the Congress or the Press. It has had virtually no visible impact on Subcommittees' actions. A bill proposed by Senator McClure in Subcommittee to extend standards for five years lost by a vote of eight to one. Neither Subcommittee has indicated any intention of reopening hearings to consider findings that led to your June 27 proposals.

While neither Subcommittee's actions are final, both have voted to adopt standards much more rigid than you proposed. Tab A contrasts their decisions with your proposal. In the House, there is some chance that standards will be loosened in full Committee. In the Senate, the full Committee is unlikely to change the final Subcommittee action, particularly since only three members (Randolph, Burdick and Baker) of the full Committee are not members of the Subcommittee.

The other major amendments to the Clean Air Act which you proposed on January 30 in your Energy Independence Act are also running into trouble. The status of these amendments and several new problems -- including a requirement for land use plans approved by EPA -- are summarized briefly at Tab B.

#### Alternatives for Actions Now on Auto Emissions

- . Alt #1. No Additional Presidential Action now. Continue and expand efforts by Zarb and others to get Subcommittees to adopt Administration proposals. Reconsider situation after final Subcommittee action.
  - . The principal arguments for this are that your position is already clear, that additional actions are unlikely to get favorable actions and may expose you to even more criticism from environmentalists and the Press.
  - . The principal arguments against it are that the outlook for acceptable standards is now bleak and additional actions by you may make a difference; and the economic consequences of the issue are critical.
- . Alt #2 Transmit bill to implement 5-year extension and/or formally request Committees to hold hearings on your June 27 proposal. Supplement this action with (a) Zarb personal contacts with Committee members as soon as possible, (b) concerted effort to inform the public about the merits of the proposal.
  - . The principal arguments for this are that a Presidentially-proposed bill would provide a rallying point for members who would support your proposal; and another communication from you would provide the basis for additional publicity to help gain support.

- . The principal arguments against this are the potential for additional negative reaction to your proposal; and the slim chances for getting acceptable standards because the issue is complex and difficult to explain to Congress or the public; there is wide disagreement among experts on air quality and health impacts, and it is difficult to document the negative auto sales and job impacts of tighter standards.

Recommendations and Decision

\_\_\_\_\_ Alt. #1. No additional Presidential action now.

- . Peterson
- . Hartmann - believes your position is already clear and Congress should take the heat if it disregards your position.
- . Train - believes additional actions could be counter productive, particularly in the Senate.

\_\_\_\_\_ Alt. #2. Prepare the following for my signature:

- . Zarb \_\_\_\_\_ Transmittal letter and bill to extend standards through 1981.
- . Lynn
- . Morton
- . Seidman \_\_\_\_\_ Letters to Committee Chairmen asking for hearings.
- . Greenspan
- . Cannon
- . Friedersdorf

T  
A  
B  
A

COMPARISON OF ALTERNATIVE EMISSION STANDARDS  
NOW UNDER CONSIDERATION  
(grams per mile)

<u>Model Year</u>	<u>HC</u>	<u>CO</u>	<u>NOX</u>
<u>Current Law</u>			
1975-76	1.5	15.0	3.1
1977	1.5	15.0	2.0
1978 on	.41	3.4	.4
<u>President's Proposal</u>			
1977-81	1.5	15.0	3.1
<u>House Commerce Subcommittee (Rogers)</u>			
1977	1.5	15.0	2.0
1978-79	.9	9.0	2.0
1980 on	.41	3.4	.4
<u>Senate Public Works Subcommittee (Muskie)</u>			
1977	1.5	15.0	3.1
1978	.41*	3.4*	1.0*
1979	.41*	3.4*	1.0*
1980	.41	3.4	1.0
1981	.41	3.4	1.0

\*The Administrator of EPA would have authority to waive these standards for up to 50% of the production of each manufacturer in 1978 and 1979. Cars covered by waiver would have to meet 1.5, 15.0 and 3.1 standards.

The Senate subcommittee has under consideration other actions which would, in fact, make the standards more difficult to meet, including:

- . Warranty covering 100,000 miles (rather than current 50,000) with "normal" maintenance (apparently as contrasted with current manufacturer prescribed, EPA approved maintenance).
- . Assembly line testing in addition to the current prototype certification process.

T  
A  
B  
B

STATUS OF MAJOR CLEAN AIR ACT AMENDMENTS PROPOSED BY THE  
ADMINISTRATION AND POTENTIAL NEW PROBLEMS IN ACTIONS TAKEN  
THUS FAR BY THE SUBCOMMITTEES

Status of Major Proposals

1. Intermittent Controls

Proposal to allow power plants in isolated areas to use intermittent controls (fuel switching, tall stacks, or load changing) through 1985 -- if health standards are not violated, rather than requiring permanent controls (scrubbers or low sulfur fuel).

House subcommittee is considering a 1980 deadline.  
Senate subcommittee is opposed to intermittent controls.

2. Coal Conversion Amendments

Administration proposal to broaden and extend the coal conversion program is not being accepted in the House subcommittee. Senate subcommittee has not yet acted.

3. Significant Deterioration

The Congress is moving in the direction of strengthening the role of the Federal Government in preventing "significant deterioration" of air quality.

4. Auto Emissions - Covered in Tab A.

New Requirements Being Added by Subcommittees (Examples)

1. Adding an emissions fee of up to \$5,000 per day for stationary pollution sources that do not meet State implementation plan requirements. Works against intermittent control proposal. (House Subcommittee)
2. Heavy duty trucks and busses would be required to meet a 90% reduction in emissions by 1979. EPA would have authority to require retrofit of existing fleet. (Senate Subcommittee)
3. New comprehensive air quality planning requirements would require land use plans covering but not limited to (1) assuring air quality is maintained, (2) indirect pollution sources such as shopping centers, etc. Requirement that plans have EPA approval would involve Federal Government in local land use planning. Liberal planning grants for COG's appears designed to get political support for proposal. Allegedly viewed by Senator Muskie as substitute for Land Use Bill. (Senate Subcommittee)

August 28, 1975

JMC:

SEIDMAN EMISSION STANDARDS MEETING

Friday, 2:00 p.m. Mr. Seidman's Office

Stanford Stattard  
John Poole  
Jack Sheen

Mr. Seidman has invited you to attend.

\_\_\_\_\_ I will attend.

Have \_\_\_\_\_ attend for me.

j

[8/29/75]

Howard's suggestion but  
in 6 what  
Come a long way -

Buckley

Sen Buckley - running  
~~started off running~~  
moderated some

How  
seems

EPA - Dr Stark -  
in EPA - He's accepted  
by the Committee  
a memo w/  
partial concerns  
about working too  
fast

such  
put  
the

worked

Stark should be brought into

Sen Buckley -

Committee from to a 3<sup>rd</sup> Sept  
expression -

maybe will stand alone =



Have discussion of  
Sub-committee -

---

a letter  
from P  
Committee - production.

Talk Boke -

Buddley -

organizing a meeting  
w/o

Another Ace - Train -  
contracts comes to

get  
Answer  
passed  
w/o

was



Trusts can get a

2-year extension

any for 3 -

ought 2

except new August  
moving toward technology

